
 

MINUTES OF THE 
SUMMERFIELD ZONING BOARD  

SUMMERFIELD COMMUNITY CENTER 
January 25, 2010 

7:00 P.M. Public Hearing 
 
NOTE: The official minutes are a CD recording of the meeting.  The following is a summary of the events 
of the meeting. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm by chair Nancy Hess. 
 
2. IN ATTENDANCE: 
Nancy Hess, Chair 
Dick Feulner, Vice-Chair 
Ken Dunham 
Trudy Whitacre 

Rich Lovett 
Chris Anderson, Town Planner 
Will Rozelle for Town Attorney 
Carrie Spencer, Clerk 

 
Alternates Present: 
Kathy Rooney 
Carrie Reeves 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Feulner made a motion to approve the consent agenda, Mr. Lovett seconded, and the motion passed 
unanimously.  Ms. Whitacre asked the board to clarify several points from the November minutes since 
she had not attended the meeting.  The minutes were corrected to clarify those points.  Mr. Dunham 
made a motion to approve the minutes as corrected, Mr. Lovett seconded, and the motion passed 3 to 0 
with Ms. Whitacre and Mr. Feulner abstaining as they had not attended the meeting. 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS 
 A.  Rezoning Case #01-10 Map Error Correction RS-30/TCDM to LB/TCDM.     
Mr. Anderson presented the case with reference to the staff report and the map that had been distributed 
to the board.  He stated that the applicant is asking the board to verify that the research about the zoning 
is valid and that the property should be formally zoned LB.  
Ms. Hess suggested that the TCD-M column in the permitted use schedule should be highlighted and not 
the LB column. 
Mr. Dunham asked if the site should be made to comply with site requirements such as parking once it is 
rezoned.  It was clarified that site compliance would only be necessary for proposed uses that were very 
dissimilar to uses in the past for the property.   
 
Public Hearing:   
In Favor:   
Gayle Smith, 2107 Lunsford Rd spoke in favor of the map error correction.  She stated that the property 
was once the original Price Store and then an antique store.  She purchased the property and used it as a 
design center, and then for retail.  The building has 2 sections, with one section most recently rented by 
a furniture store.  It has never been inhabited as a dwelling.  She desires to bring the property into 
compliance with the town. 
 
Kathy Rooney, 7130 Rabbit Hollow Rd, spoke in favor of the request stating that it is completely 
appropriate that the applicant be given the zoning she is asking for. 
Peggy McPartland, 7707 Tannery Rd, asked for clarification about the grandfathering aspect of the case.  
She asked for confirmation that if the property use changed to a dissimilar use then it had been in the 
past, it would have to be brought into compliance.  Mr. Anderson pointed out that if a new use required 
development standards it would have to be brought into compliance with those development standards.     
 



 
In Opposition:  none 
There were no more speakers in favor or against the map error correction and Ms. Hess closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Mr. Lovett asked if the board had seen any similar cases and suggested that they had not. 
 
Mr. Lovett made a motion to approve the request based on the administrative error that occurred many 
years ago, Ms. Hess seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
    
5.  OTHER BUSINESS: 
A.    Appointment of Chair and Co-Chair 
Ms. Whitacre made a motion to appoint Nancy Hess as Chair, and Dick Feulner as Vice-Chair.  Mr. 
Lovett seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Hess informed the board that alternate Rick Burgieres has moved out of the town limits.  Ms. Hess 
requested a review of the board’s 2009 attendance and take justifiable action for a board member who 
has not attended in a long time.  Ms. Hess suggested that two board alternates are adequate. 
 
B.    Presentation of 2010 Submission Schedule 
Mr. Feulner suggested that the December meeting be moved to Dec 20, and the board agreed. 
 
Ms. Whitacre asked the board to consider a suggestion that Mr. Lovett had made for regular board 
members to take turns allowing an alternate to be seated.  Mr. Rozelle will research the issue. 
 
Ms. Hess asked the board to consider training options or discussion of the Comprehensive Plan when 
there is not a regular agenda.  She asked if the Comp Plan draft would be ready for the board to begin to 
become familiar with in February and Mr. Anderson stated that it will depend on tomorrow night’s 
outcome. 
 
Mr. Anderson informed the board that the Jordan Lake submittal was approved by Town Council and 
submitted in time for the Dec 31 deadline. 
 
Ms. Whitacre asked if there was any information about flags she’s seen along Pleasant Ridge Rd and it 
was suggested that they may be utility marking flags.  She also commented on substandard substrate 
along the shoulders of Pleasant Ridge Rd near Lewiston Rd. and asked if staff knew if it would be 
improved.  Staff did not know. 
 
Mr. Dunham asked staff to look into a blinking sign in the window of the dry cleaning business in the 
Old Summerfield Shopping Center and Mr. Anderson stated that he would look into it. 
 
Mr. Feulner stated that Southern States was using a lot of trailers at the back of the property near the old 
house and asked if it were allowed in light of impervious surface restrictions.  Ms. Hess asked if the 
trailers could be in violation of the junked motor vehicle ordinance.  Mr. Feulner asked staff to review 
the landscaping requirements of the property. 
Ms. Hess informed the board that the property along the Haw River with an offer of dedication of a 100 
foot buffer is in bankruptcy and asked what would become of it.  Mr. Rozelle stated that he would look 
into the situation.  She asked staff to review similar offers of dedication; made a long time ago as 
conditions for rezoning or subdivision.  Mr. Lovett suggested that if Council approves a rezoning with 
an offer of dedication, the town should automatically accept it.  The board suggested a deadline be 
established after which an offer would revert back to the property owner. 
 
Ms. Whitacre made a motion to adjourn, Mr. Dunham seconded, and the meeting adjourned at 8:21. 


